Public Document Pack

Procurement Board
Dear Member,
You are invited to attend the meeting of the Procurement Board to be held as follows
for the transaction of the business indicated.
David Wilcock
Monitoring Officer
DATE:

Wednesday, 28 July 2021

TIME:

10.00 am

VENUE:

100 Embankment - Cathedral Approach, Salford, M3 7NJ

In accordance with ‘The Openness of Local Government Bodies Regulations
2014,’ the press and public have the right to film, video, photograph or record
this meeting.
AGENDA
GUIDANCE FOR MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC ON THE RETURN
TO FACE TO FACE COUNCIL MEETINGS

(Pages 1 - 2)

1

Apologies for absence

2

Declarations of interest

3

To approve, as a correct record, the minutes of the meeting held
on 7th July 2021

4

Matters arising

5

Decision items - Part 1 (open to the public)

5a

Request for Approval - Contract Award - Service, Maintenance and
Data Management of the GM Combined Air Quality Network - Ben
Rose

(Pages 7 - 16)

5b

Request for Approval - St George's RC High School Demolition - Jon
Phillips

(Pages 17 - 22)

5c

Request for Approval - Contract Award - Longshaw Drive House Agreement of Tender Stage 1 to Undertake Design and Costings to
Stage 2 - Tracy Squirrell

(Pages 23 - 30)

5d

Request for Approval - Contract Award - Purchase of a Choice Based
Lettings Management System and on-going Homelessness
Prevention and Advice System - Jane Anderson

(Pages 31 - 42)

(Pages 3 - 6)

5e

Request for Approval - Civic Centre Refurbishment - Dave Lyon

6

Any other business - Part 1 (open to the public)

7

Date and time of next meeting

(Pages 43 - 50)

10:00am on Wednesday 4th August 2021, venue to be confirmed.

Contact Officer:
Carol Eddleston, Senior Democratic Services
Advisor

Tel No:
E-Mail:

0161 793 3316
carol.eddleston@salford.gov.uk

Agenda Annex
The return to face to face council meetings from 7th May 2021
The temporary regulations enabling remote meetings expired on 7 May 2021 and the
Government now requires that we hold meetings of the full council, Cabinet,
committees, panels and boards (that are open to the public) have to be held in public
so members of the public can attend in person.
A tremendous effort has gone into trying to ensure that any council meetings taking
place in person will be held in a COVID-19 secure environment. Your safety is our
upmost priority, whilst also supporting transparency, accountability and effective
decision making.
The venue for face to face meetings
All the formal council meetings from 5th July will take place at 100 Embankment
Cathedral Approach, Salford, M3 7NJ, as this is the most appropriate, suitably sized
venue available to the city council, where meetings can take place in a COVID-secure
way.
COVID-secure face to face meetings
Listed below are some of the control measures that we have had to put in place at the
meetings to minimise the risk of the transmission of the virus. It is very important that
all persons attending the meetings comply with the following.
1. Please arrive at least 15 minutes before the start of the meeting to allow for
controlled access to the building and meeting space.
2. A marshal will be onsite to greet you and will escort you to the meeting.
3. The meeting will be run in line with Government guidance, and using the principle
of ‘hands, face and space’. Therefore, you are asked to regularly wash and sanitise
your hands, wear a face covering at all times unless you hold a medical exemption,
and please maintain a two metre distance from others at all times whilst in the
building.
4. Movement around the meeting spaces will be kept to an absolute minimum with
pre-defined entrances and exits (the marshal onsite will cover this in more detail
with you when you arrive).
5. A vital element of our COVID-secure plans is that everyone attending should
complete a COVID-19 lateral flow home tests three days before the meeting
and on the morning of the meeting:
•

You can collect or order the home testing kits by:
o Ordering a box of test kits to be delivered to your home
o Collecting a box of test kits from a local collection point

•

If you test positive before or on the day you were meant to attend the meeting
under no circumstances should you attend, please email your apologies to
Democratic Services of your decisionmakingandscrutiny@salford.gov.uk

•

If your lateral flow test is positive you will then need to book a complementary
PCR Test and follow national guidance on self-isolating.

6. Despite all the COVID-secure measures we have put in place there remains a
residual risk and coronavirus can make anyone seriously ill. For some of you the
risk is higher, particularly if…
• you are clinically extremely vulnerable or if they are at significant risk

Page 1

•

you have one or more health conditions as a number of risk factors may interact
as well as health conditions.

You may wish to take medical advice about your particular circumstances, if either
of the above applies to you before you make a decision about attending face to
face meetings.
Travelling to 100 Embankment
• By foot: A range of walking routes are available.
•
•

By train: Manchester Victoria Railway Station is a couple of minutes’ walk
from 100 Embankment.
By car: Q-Park Deansgate North, 2 Chapel Street, Manchester, M3 7WJ, is
located underneath the Embankment development. Parking can be prebooked on the website below.
Deansgate North Parking | Manchester Car Parks | Q-Park

Page 2

Agenda Item 3
Procurement Board Meeting Held at 100 Embankment, Cathedral
Approach, Salford, M3 7NJ
7th July 2021
Meeting commenced at 10:30am
Meeting ended at: 10:58am

Present in Person
Councillors Bill Hinds (in the chair), John Merry and Jack Youd.

In Attendance in Person
Carol Eddleston

Democratic Services

In Attendance via MS Teams
Andrew Leigh
Jane Barlow
Anene Chiegboka
Chris Conway
Anthony Hilton
Chris Smith
Tracy Squirrel

Head of Housing & Strategy
Programme & Commercial Manager

Principal Engineer
Category Manager
Head of Strategic Procurement
Head of Infrastructure
Assistant Building Liaison Officer

1. Apologies for Absence
Apologies for absence were submitted on behalf of City Mayor Paul Dennett and Councillor Tracy
Kelly.

2. Declarations of Interest
There were no declarations of interest.

3. Minutes of Proceedings
The minutes of the meeting held on 23rd June were approved as a correct record.

4. Matters Arising
There were no matters arising.

5. Decision Items – Part 1 (open to the public)
5(a) Request for Approval – Contract Award – Commissioned Statutory Homeless
Supported Temporary Accommodation Projects
Consideration was given to a joint report of the Interim Strategic Director for Place and the Strategic
Director for People seeking approval to award the contract for Statutory Homeless Supported
Temporary Accommodation Projects.
The council currently had two commissioned statutory homeless supported temporary
accommodation schemes at Abbott Lodge and SASH. Together they currently provided 35 units of
supported accommodation. These clients who had qualified for assistance, were often identified as

Page 3

having a priority need (as defined by housing law) and were therefore vulnerable and likely to have
very high levels of complex needs. Both existing commissioned schemes would reach the end of their
contract term on 30.11.21 and Procurement Board had previously given approval to re -tender these
services within the existing budget c£225k per annum and to seek to increase capacity to a minimum
of 45 units within existing budget parameters.
It was disappointing that the two bids submitted for LOT 3 (minimum of 10 units in one or more of:
Little Hulton, Walkden (North or South), Swinton (Wardley or Park), Eccles or Barton & Winton ) had
not been acceptable as they offered shared accommodation, which was not what was required.
The successful bidder for LOT 1 already paid the real Living Wage and the successful bidder for LOT 2
had committed to do so. This would be followed up as part of contract monitoring.
RESOLVED, THAT: 60 months’ contracts with two optional 12 months extension periods be awarded
as follows for the provision of statutory homeless supported temporary accommodation:
LOT 1, with a full project value of £375,610, be awarded to the Riverside Group, and
LOT 2, with a full project value of £486,348.15, be awarded to Salvation Army Housing Association.

5(b) – Request for Approval – Contract Award – Internal Alteration Works at
Springwood Primary School, Craig Hall Site
Consideration was given to a report of the Strategic Director People seeking approval to award the
contract for internal alterations at Springwood Primary School, Craig Hall site.
The works had been identified as a priority under the schools Asset Management Plan (AMP) criteria
and included internal alterations to the existing kitchen and laundry to create a small kitchen facility,
two small group rooms and a large storeroom. The works were to be funded from the schools capital
maintenance programme.
Members of the board welcomed the detailed commitment to Social Value outlined by the successful
bidder and were particularly pleased to learn that they had applied for Living Wage Foundation
accreditation and had continued to pay furloughed staff !00% of their salary.
RESOLVED, THAT: a seven weeks’ contract for internal alterations at Springwood Primary School, Craig
Hall site be awarded to Schofield and Sons Limited at a cost of £171,921.00 (full project cost
£200,000.00).

5(c) – Request for Approval to go out to Tender for Salford City Centre Bee Network
Consideration was given to a report of the Strategic Director Place seeking approval to go out to
tender for each phase of the proposed Salford City Centre Bee Network scheme.
The Bee Network proposals created an interconnected walking and cycling network which linked key
trip generators by providing routes along the River Irwell, negotiating railway infrastructure, and
connections through neighbourhoods

Page 4

The report provided a scheme update following the successful bid to the Mayors Challenge Fund (MCF)
gaining programme entry status and sought further approval for the next steps of delivery. The Salford
City Centre Bee Network once completed would support the transformation of Salford City centre into
an attractive and welcoming environment for local people, residents and people travelling across
Salford city centre. The current estimated total cost for all phases of the project was £4.9m (this was
based on a pre-tender cost estimate in January 2021), for the delivery of the scheme on site and the
required TfGM/MCF levels of risk. 2 The scheme would be largely funded from MCF grant, subject to
a successful business case approval by the GMCA, a proportion of Section 106 funding to be secured
by the City Council would also be used.
A five-week public consultation was undertaken from 18 December 2020 to 22 January 2021. A total
of 459 comments were received through an online consultation tool, emails, returned post and voice
messages.
Officers had reviewed all of the comments received and identified that a signifi cant proportion of
negative comments related to three locations: North George Street and Cannon Street; Mayan
Avenue, Mount Street & Satinwood Walk, and Cleminson Street, Ford Street and St Stephen street.
These comments were discussed during a workshop on 3 February 2021 with the multidisciplinary
team involved in the development of the scheme and alternative design options proposed to address
the concerns.
Contribution to Social Value would be considered as an element within the assessment of tender
options, with tenderers being asked to provide a method statement describing how they would bring
value to the three priority Social Value outcomes for Salford: Social: increased community strength
and resilience; Environmental: improved impact of the local environment on people’s wellbeing and
Economic: increased number of quality employment opportunities and reduced poverty for local
citizens.
The board was mindful of the leverage opportunities that a project of this magnitude would bring to
the city council. Officers were urged to think strategically about what the ask from council in terms of
apprenticeships, upskilling and employment opportunities, particularly in areas where there might be
a notable lack of skills currently.
RESOLVED, THAT Procurement Board:
1) Note and endorse the proposed procurement routes;
2) Approve the issue of tenders for each phase of the proposed Salford City Centre Bee Network
scheme;
3) Delegate authority to the Strategic Director Place in consultation with the S151 officer to
submit the Full Business Case (FBC) to the Greater Manchester Combined Authority (GMCA)
for review.
4) Delegate Authority to the Strategic Director Place in consultation with the S151 officer to draft
and approve the Grant Funding Agreement (GFA) between Salford City Council, Transport for
Greater Manchester (TfGM) and the GMCA.

Page 5

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 5a
Part 1: Open to the public

REPORT OF
The Interim Strategic Director for Place
TO
Procurement Board
ON
28th July 2021

TITLE: Approval to Award the Contract for the service, maintenance and data
management of the GM Combined Air Quality Monitoring Network
RECOMMENDATION:
That Procurement Board approve the award of the contracts for service,
maintenance and data management of the GM Combined Air Quality Monitoring
Network as detailed in the table below:

Detail required

Answers

Title/Description of Contracted
Service/Supply/Project

Lot 1: Equipment Servicing & Maintenance of the
Greater Manchester Air Quality Monitoring Network

Name of Successful Contractor

Enviro Technology Services Ltd

Supplier Registration Number

1726773

(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement)

Type of organisation

Private Limited Company

(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement)

Status of Organisation

SME

(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement)

Contract Value

£60,000

Per Annum (estimated average)

Contract Duration

24 months

Contract Start Date

01/09/2021

Contract End Date

31/08/2023

Optional Extension Period 1

12 months

Optional Extension Period 2

12 months

Who will approve each Extension
Period?
Contact Officer (Name & number)

Strategic Director (extension < £150k)

Sample B – aw ard of contract

Page 7

Ben Rose Tel: 0161 607 6964

Lead Service Group

Place

How the contract was procured?
(to be supplied by procurement)
Framework Details (where applicable)
(procurement body, framework
reference & title, start/ end date

Open Tender
N/A

External Funding Source (please identify below)
Revenue Budget. The cost of the service is split

Funding Source

between the other 9 GM authorities and TfGM,
therefore there will be no contribution from Salford.

Mayor’s Employment Charter
Committed to sign up to charter

Ethical Contractor

Accredited Living Wage Employer

Detail required

Answers

Title/Description of Contracted
Service/Supply/Project

Lot 2: Data Management & Ratification of the
Greater Manchester Air Quality Monitoring Network

Name of Successful Contractor

Ricardo AEA Ltd

Supplier Registration Number

8229264

(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement)

Type of organisation

Private Limited Company

(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement)

Status of Organisation

SME

(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement)

Contract Value

£42,000

Per Annum (estimated average)

Contract Duration

24 months

Contract Start Date

01/09/2021

Contract End Date

31/08/2023

Optional Extension Period 1

12 months

Optional Extension Period 2

12 months

Who will approve each Extension
Period?
Contact Officer (Name & number)
Lead Service Group

Ben Rose Tel: 0161 607 6964
Place

How the contract was procured?
(to be supplied by procurement)
Framework Details (where applicable)
(procurement body, framework
reference & title, start/ end date

Sample B – aw ard of contract

Strategic Director (extension < £150k)

Page 8

Open Tender
N/A

Funding Source
Ethical Contractor

External Funding Source (please identify below)
Revenue Budget. The cost of the service is split
between the other 9 GM authorities and TfGM,
therefore there will be no contribution from Salford.

Mayor’s Employment Charter
Committed to sign up to charter
Accredited Living Wage Employer

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:
The purpose of this report is to seek approval for the award of the above mentioned
contract.
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS:
A report was submitted to Procurement Board for approval to go out to the market and
approved on 25th March 2021.

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS (NOT OPEN TO THE PUBLIC)
Exempt under Paragraph 3 of Schedlue12 A of the Local Government Act 1972.
Tender Submissions and Evaluation documents.
KEY DECISION:
Yes
DETAILS:
1. Background
The GM Combined Air Quality Monitoring Network (GMAQN) has been operating
successfully since 2013, with Salford producing the original technical specification
needed to go to tender and managing the operational budget on behalf of the other 9
GM local authorities. This is the third time that the contract has been tendered since
2013 and there have been no issues with this combined approach.
The current agreement of a joint monitoring network arrangement will continue as all
10 Greater Manchester local authorities have agreed to continue participating.
Salford has been selected as the lead for the GM authorities in managing the
contracts as per the previous eight years.
The cost of these contracts will be shared by the other 9 GM authorities. In
recognition of the officer time spent on leading on the procurement of these services
and managing the contracts and associated budget, Salford will no longer contribute.

Sample B – aw ard of contract

Page 9

This will result in an annual saving to Salford of approximately £10K. This is a
change from the previous arrangement where the cost was shared equally by all 10
GM authorities.
A financial contribution from Transport for Greater Manchester (TfGM) will also be
obtained for the necessary running costs of: A) 4 x new monitoring sites added into
the network during 2020, and B) a further 2 x additional monitoring stations (in Bury
and Manchester) that are expected to become operational during this contract period
that are being installed as part of the Greater Manchester Clean Air Plan Monitoring
& Evaluation. The capital cost of these sites was funded by TfGM.
The intention is to award the suppliers an initial 2 year contract, with the option to
extend for a further two 12 month periods. The reason for this is to secure a
competitive price over 4 years, to ensure that it is appropriate to renew after 2 years
and that there is financial commitment from the other 9 authorities and TfGM for the
additional years.
2. The Procurement Process
The opportunity was advertised in the Northwest Portal (the chest) and the FTS,
which is the replacement portal for the OJEU. This project was an open procedure
inviting companies to submit a tender.
There were 52 expressions of interest of which 36 did not respond, 9 opted out and 7
companies submitted bids for Lots 1 & 2. Out of the 7 bids received there were 5
bids received for Lot 1 and 2 bids received for Lot 2.
The bid evaluation weightings for the project were split into 50% quality and 50%
price.
Lot 1 – Equipment Servicing & Maintenance of the GMAQN
Bidder

% Price score
Max 50%

% Quality score
Max 50%

% Overall Score
100%

A
B
C
D
E

23.46%
33.63%
50.00%
36.40%
35.21%

34.50%
47.50%

57.96%
81.13%
80.00%
66.90%
68.21%

30.00%
30.50%
33.00%

Lot 2 – Data Management & Ratification of the GMAQN
Bidder

% Price score
Max 50%

% Quality score
Max 50%

% Overall Score
100%

A
B

50.00%
25.99%

24.10%
50.00%

74.10%
75.99%

The awards of contract for both lots were based on the Most Economically
Advantageous Tender. Lot 1 is awarded to bidder B (Enviro Technology Services Ltd).
Lot 2 is awarded to bidder B (Ricardo AEA Ltd). Both awards are not lowest in price
Sample B – aw ard of contract

Page 10

but better in terms of the quality of service delivery and social/ added value. This
should result in:




better quality air quality monitoring data capture rates (there is a minimum data
capture level of 90% over the year set by Defra in order for the monitoring data to
be deemed representative);
lower environmental impact when delivering the service; and
increased level of contribution to the local economy when delivering the service.

The contract will be for a period of two years commencing on 1 st September 2021 to
31st August 2023, with an option to extend for a further two years on an annual basis
to 31st August 2025.
Prices for these new contracts are similar to current contract prices. For the first year
for Lot 1, there is an approximate 3.6% increase in price. For Lot 2 there is an
approximate 0.6% increase in price for the first year.
As noted in the background section of this report, Salford will no longer contribute to
the cost of these contracts in recognition of the officer time spent on leading on the
procurement of these services and managing the contracts and associated budget.
3. Social Value
A social value question was included in the tender as part of the quality assessment
process for both Lot 1 and Lot 2. The highest scoring bidders demonstrated good
social value outcomes, as shown in the following examples:
Lot 1 – Enviro Technology Services Ltd
Social:
 Service engineers used for the contract are locally based. Employees receive a
range of benefits e.g. health benefits.
 A corporate social responsibility policy is in place setting out ethical business
policies that are supported in day-to-day business activities and administrative
matters.
 Externally accredited quality (ISO 9001) and health & safety (ISO 45001)
management systems are in place to continually improve business performance in
these areas.
Environmental:
 An externally accredited ISO 14001 environmental management system is in place
to continually improve environmental business performance. The company have
offered to share their environmental KPI’s with the Council.
 One of the largest environmental impacts of this contract is from transportation
activities – the company operate a fleet of hybrid vehicles for day to day activities
and use locally based service engineers to minimise travelling distance and
associated vehicle emissions and environmental impact.
 An electronic waste recycling WEEE compliance certificate has been supplied, as
well as air conditioning engineers F-gas certification (to minimise greenhouse gas
emissions from air conditioning systems used in the network).
Sample B – aw ard of contract

Page 11



The company annually supports different climate/ environment charities.

Economic:
 Service engineers for air quality monitoring equipment servicing are locally based
and will contribute to the local economy.
 A locally based electrical contractor will be used to carry out electrical safety testing
on the air quality monitoring sites as a commitment to use contractors and
resources from within Greater Manchester.
Innovation and added value:
 The company have identified a potential enhancement of the air quality monitoring
network that could save officer time and operating costs.
Lot 2 – Ricardo AEA Ltd
Social:
 Staff involved in delivering the contract will predominantly be Manchester based.
The company is a member of the ‘30% club’ – a commitment to reducing the
Gender Pay Gap across the business, and pay the National Living Wage.
 Inclusion and diversity policies are in place.
 Externally accredited quality (ISO 9001) and health & safety (ISO 45001)
management systems are in place to continually improve business performance in
these areas.
 The company recruitment teams regularly reach out to inform young people at local
schools and universities about career opportunities.
Environmental:
 An externally accredited ISO 14001 environmental management system is in
place to continually improve environmental business performance. The company
have offered to share their environmental KPI’s with the Council.
 Committed to achieve Net Zero carbon emissions from its operations by the end of
calendar year 2030.
 The use of locally based staff to deliver the contract will minimise travelling distance
and associated vehicle emissions and environmental impact.
Economic:
 Staff involved in delivering the contract will predominantly be Manchester based
and will contribute to the local economy
 The company provide an additional air quality reporting service within their price
that the competitor bidder would charge separately for.
Innovation and added value:
 Have offered to assist GM councils in promoting air quality campaigns e.g. Clean
Air Day with the support of their local team and training/ events materials.
 The company are willing to share the results of their study assessing air quality
concentrations around schools using new sensor technologies.
 The Greater Manchester Air Quality Monitoring Network would be able to access
wider air quality expertise within the company where relevant to the contract e.g.

Sample B – aw ard of contract

Page 12



advice on air quality modelling, emissions inventory experts, industrial pollution
experts, mobile monitoring experts etc.
During the COVID-19 pandemic, the company provided GM with detailed and very
useful reports about the impact of social distancing measures and associated travel
restrictions on local air quality at no additional cost.

KEY COUNCIL POLICIES:




Greater Manchester Low-Emission Strategy and Air Quality Action Plan
Greater Manchester Clean Air Plan
Salford City Council Great Eight priorities number 7 - Tackling the climate
emergency: Encourage active travel and improvements in air quality.

EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT AND IMPLICATIONS: N/A
ASSESSMENT OF RISK:
Medium to high – This will be the third contract for the service and maintenance of the
GM Combined Air Quality Monitoring Network, the first two having run successfully
since 2013.
The integrity of the network benefits all 10 GM authorities and is essential for:
 demonstrating progress in meeting statutory air quality standards;
 evaluating the impact of air quality action plan and Greater Manchester Clean Air
Plan/ Clean Air Zone measures;
 determining air quality trends and highest pollutant concentrations;
 evaluating the effects of air pollution on public health;
 improving the accuracy of air quality modelling and forecasting; and
 providing information for the public to engage with local air quality issues and
measures taken to improve it.
Data produced by automatic air quality networks has been considered by DEFRA and
the Environment Agency as being extremely important to the ongoing evaluation of
risk during the COVID-19 pandemic due to the potential impact of air pollution on
respiratory illnesses.
If a Greater Manchester combined air quality monitoring network is not in place,
individual local authorities may no longer contribute to funding air quality monitoring in
their areas resulting in statutory duties not being adequately fulfilled and diminished
quality and quantity of real time air quality monitoring data.
SOURCE OF FUNDING:
The cost of these services will be shared by the other 9 GM authorities. In recognition
of the officer time spent on leading on the procurement of these services and
managing the contracts and associated budget, Salford will no longer make a
contribution. This is a change from the previous arrangement where the cost was
shared equally by all 10 GM authorities.

Sample B – aw ard of contract

Page 13

A financial contribution from Transport for Greater Manchester (TfGM) will also be
obtained for the necessary running costs of: A) 4 x new monitoring sites added into
the network during 2020, and B) a further 2 x additional monitoring stations (in Bury
and Manchester) that are expected to become operational during this contract period
that are being installed as part of the Greater Manchester Clean Air Plan Monitoring &
Evaluation. The capital cost of these sites was funded by TfGM.
Salford will manage the funds using an existing revenue budget.
LEGAL IMPLICATIONS: Supplied by: Tony Hatton, Principal Solicitor, Tel: 0161 219
6323
Local Authorities have a statutory duty under the Environment Act 1995 to monitor and
report on air quality within their area and report the findings to DEFRA. Section 82 of
the Environment Act 1995 provides that every local authority shall review the air quality
within its area, both at the present time and the likely future air quality.
Guidance on the air quality issues is provided by the Secretary of State under section
88(1) of the Environment Act 1995, and local authorities must have regard to it when
carrying out their local air quality management duties (at Policy Guidance PG16).
The proposals to award the contracts follow a tender exercise in accordance with the
Public Contracts Regulations 2015 (advertising in the Northwest Portal and the FTS,
which is the replacement portal for the OJEU), and the Council’s Contractual Standing
Orders. In following the procedures, any potential challenge to the award of a contract
to a provider from an aggrieved provider will be significantly reduced, assuming always
that the tender exercise is an open and fair one.
The award of the contracts will commit the Council to two year contracts with the
providers, with the option to extend for two further periods of twelve months each.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: Supplied by: David Rhodes, Tel: 0161 925 1262
This co-ordinated approach will result in overall cost benefits to GM because of
economies of scale, a relatively long contract length and costs are shared more
equitably across the region. The successful contractor for Lot 1 has fixed the annual
price for the first 2 years of the contract with only minor increases in optional extension
years. For Lot 2, there are minor increases in prices for each successive year of the
contract.
The Finance Team – Alison Smith:
The scheme is fully funded by the contributions made by the other Local Authorities
and TfGM who have signed up to the GMAQN project.
Salford previously had core budget to support their own apportionment. However,
following discussions with the other LA’s the requirement for SCC to submit a
contribution was agreed to be lifted. This will result in annual savings to Salford of
approximately £10K.

Sample B – aw ard of contract

Page 14

There is no financial risk anticipated.
PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS: Supplied by: Deborah Derbyshire, Tel: 0161 686
6244
The procurement process undertaken is set out in the report above. This complies
with the Procurement Contract Regulations and the Council’s Contractual Standing
Orders.

HR IMPLICATIONS: N/A

CLIMATE CHANGE IMPLICATIONS: Supplied by: Ben Rose, Tel: 0161 607 6964
The GM Combined Air Quality Monitoring Network will measure key air pollutant
concentration trends across the conurbation that are of a consequence of emissions
from various sources e.g. road transport and energy consumption. The continuation
of the network will therefore be complimentary to the Salford City Council Carbon
Reduction & Climate Change Action Plan.
OTHER DIRECTORATES CONSULTED: N/A

CONTACT OFFICER: Ben Rose
TELEPHONE NUMBER: 0161 607 6964

WARD(S) TO WHICH REPORT RELATE(S): All wards.

Sample B – aw ard of contract

Page 15

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 5b
Part 1: Open to the public

REPORT OF
The Strategic Director for People
TO
Procurement Board
ON
28th July 2021

TITLE: Approval to Award the Contract for the demolition of the former St Georges
RC High School, Walkden.

RECOMMENDATION:
That Procurement Board approve the award of the Contract for the demolition of the
former St Georges RC High School as detailed in the table below:

Detail required

Answers

Title/Description of Contracted
Service/Supply/Project

Demolition of the former St Georges RC High
School, Walkden.

Name of Successful Contractor

Connell Brothers Limited

Supplier Registration Number

02475702

(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement)

Type of organisation

Private Limited Company

(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement)

Status of Organisation

SME

(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement)

Contract Value

£334,000.00

Full Project £390,000.00

Contract Duration

17 weeks

Contract Start Date

30/08/2021

Contract End Date

24/12/2021

Optional Extension Period 1

N/A

Optional Extension Period 2

N/A

Page 17

Who will approve each Extension
Period?
Contact Officer (Name & number)

N/A
Jon Phillips 0161 779 4814

Lead Service Group

Place

How the contract was procured?
(to be supplied by procurement)
Framework Details (where applicable)
(procurement body, framework
reference & title, start/ end date
Funding Source

Framework Call-off (Mini Competition)
Demolition and Associated
Services Framework Agreement.
Capital Programme
Mayor’s Employment Charter
Committed to sign up to charter

Ethical Contractor

Accredited Living Wage Employer

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:
The purpose of this report is to seek approval for the award of the above, mentioned
contract.

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS: N/A

KEY DECISION:
No

DETAILS:
1. Background
The project comprises the demolition of the former St Georges RC High School,
Parsonage Drive, Walkden. Since the building closed its door as a high school, the
school was taken over by BBC Northwest as a production set for filming various
children’s programs.
In October 2020 the BBC relocated to another facility in the city, and as a result of this
the school has become a prime target for Anti-social behaviour activities and is
therefore being subjected to heavy vandalism, externally and internally.
Following demolition, options associated with the future use of the St George’s site
include both residential development and education use.

Page 18

2. The Procurement Process
The works for the project were tendered under the Council’s e-tendering portal in
accordance with Contractual Standing Orders. Tenders were let by mini competition
under the Framework agreement for Demolition and Associated Services.
Five companies submitted a tender and these have been evaluated in accordance
with selection criteria.
The evaluation scores are as follows:-

% Price
score

% Quality
score

% Overall
Score

Max 70%

Max 30%

100%

70.00

22.50

92.50

£334,000.00

Provider B

62.35

15.30

77.65

£375,000.00

Provider C

51.22

18.90

70.12

£456,494.00

Provider D

47.08

18.90

65.98

£496,612.00

Provider E

61.60

18.90

80.50

£379,560.00

Name of Bidder

Connell Brothers Ltd

Price

Following the evaluation process the company that scored the highest in accordance
with the selection criteria was Connell Brothers Limited with a tender of £334,000.00.
Their submission produced a score of 92.50% and represents the most economically
advantageous offer to the Council which also supports social value.
3. Social Value
The contractor’s ability to deliver additional social value outcomes were assessed as
part of the selection criteria for the Council’s Demolition and Associated Services
Framework Agreement. All potential bidders had previously demonstrated satisfactory
capacity to deliver the required social outcomes and wider community benefit.
The evaluation criteria for this contract included assessment of how the contractor
will contribute towards the environmental, social and economic wellbeing of the area.
Connell Brothers Limited (CBL) deliver social value in various ways, one of which is to
actively encourage and pursue the use of local labour to bring both financial and social
benefit to the community as a whole. CBL are based in Salford and have previously
worked for Salford City Council on demolition schemes at the High Street estate,
Elmstead House/Swinton Clinic and St Lukes Primary school. This resulted in the
appointment of 7 new members of staff, all of whom were previously unemployed.

Page 19

The economic benefit to the local community extends beyond the local labour market
and includes the local supply chain consisting of builders merchants, security
contractors, fuel suppliers, hire stores, mechanics, waste transfer centres, hauliers
and hydraulic hose repair engineers.
CBL propose to source specialist subcontractors locally to the site, which will
contribute to keeping money in Salford and reduce the environmental impact of the
CO2 travelling to site. The following sub-contractors and suppliers are:




Bridgewater Security Ltd, Cromwell Road – Security Services
Grade 1 Hire & Sales Ltd, Langley Road – Scaffolding & Heras Security
Fencing
J O’Shea & Sons Ltd, Orchard Street – Aggregate Recycling

KEY COUNCIL POLICIES:
Housing & Regeneration

EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT AND IMPLICATIONS: N/A

ASSESSMENT OF RISK: High.
The works have been identified as a priority under the capital programme as the
building has become a concern due to ASBO, which has resulted in an increase
amount of vandalism after being vacated by the BBC Northwest.
The building contains significant amounts of asbestos material for, which removal will
be under a controlled licenced requirement and will dictate the speed of the demolition.
Connell Brothers hold a full 3-year asbestos removal licence and are long standing
members of ARCA (Asbestos Removal Contractors Association).
With Connell Brothers controlling ‘in house’ both the licenced asbestos removal work
and the demolition work this will help eliminate any problems associated with placing
a heavy reliance on a sub-contracted 3rd party licenced asbestos removal contractor.
Given urgency to demolish the building it is deemed advantageous to appoint a
demolition contractor who holds an asbestos removal licence.
SOURCE OF FUNDING:
The source of funding is: 2021/22 Capital Programme
Expenditure Code: D09335

Page 20

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS: Supplied by: The Shared Legal Service - Contact officer and
telephone number: Tony Hatton - Principal Solicitor tel. 0161 219 6323.
When commissioning contracts for the procurement of goods, services, or the
execution of works, the Council must comply with the Public Contracts Regulations
2015 (PCR) and its own Contractual Standing Orders (CSO’s), failing which a contract
may be subject to legal challenge from an aggrieved provider. The proposed award of
the contract follows a tender exercise by mini competition in accordance with the
Framework agreement for Demolition and Associated Services
The purpose of a framework agreement is to select through a procurement/ evaluation
process a number of providers who can meet the service requirements of the Council,
as and when those services are required. If they are required then the Council will
undertake an exercise to call off the services from one or more of the providers who
have been selected to be on the framework and this may be through any number of
ways e.g. mini-competition, direct allocation etc. depending on the circumstances. A
contract will then be formed between the Council and the chosen provider/s.
The Council will need to have followed the procedure set out in the framework
agreement for mini competition to ensure the procurement process is compliant. Five
tenders were received from framework suppliers for this project, which have been
evaluated on the most economically advantageous tender basis in line with
procurement procedures resulting in the proposed award of the contract to Connell
Brothers Limited. The procurement procedures therefore appear robust and compliant
with the requirements of the Council’s CSO’s and PCR.
Legal Services will assist with preparing any contractual documentation upon receipt
of instructions to ensure the Council’s position and interest are protected

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: Submitted by: The Finance Team - Contact officer and
telephone number: Natalie Birchall
The costs detailed in this report to a maximum of is funding of £390,000 (Tender costs
£334,000.00 plus professional fees and associated costs of £56,000.00) will be funded
from the approved place, property 2021/22 capital programme.

PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS: Supplied by: The Corporate Procurement Team
Contact officer and telephone number: Deborah Derbyshire (Category Manager –
Corporate Procurement Team) Tel: 0161 686 6244
The project has been competitively tendered by means of a mini competition under
the Council’s own Demolition and Associated Services Framework, which complies
with the Councils Contractual Standing Orders and the Procurement Contract
Regulations.

Page 21

The winning tenderer has submitted the most economically advantageous offer in line
with the rules of the framework and the award also supports the Council’s objectives
of working towards delivering social value on this contract.
HR IMPLICATIONS: N/A
CLIMATE CHANGE IMPLICATIONS:
All projects are developed to meet or exceed current legislation and requirements
relating to energy efficiency and carbon reduction targets. Projects are required to
support the Council’s objectives of becoming carbon neutral by 2028.
___________________________________________________________________
OTHER DIRECTORATES CONSULTED: N/A
CONTACT OFFICER: Jon Phillips
TELEPHONE NUMBER: 0161 779 4814
WARD(S) TO WHICH REPORT RELATE(S): Walkden and Little Hulton

Page 22

Agenda Item 5c
Part 1: Open to the public

REPORT OF
The Strategic Director for Place
TO
Procurement Board
ON
28th July 2021

TITLE: Approval for the outcome of the mini-competition (Stage 1) procurement
process conducted through the Innovation Chain North Framework to award the
contract to Crossfield Construction as constructor partner to design and build a
housing project at Longshaw Drive, Little Hulton.

RECOMMENDATION:
That Procurement Board:(a) Approves the award of the following Stage 1 contract for a project approved
under the current Capital Programme in accordance with the following:(i) Approves the outcome of the mini-competition (Stage 1) procurement
process conducted through the Innovation Chain North Framework to award
the contract to Crossfield Construction as constructor partner to design and
build housing project at Longshaw Drive, Little Hulton. Crossfield
Construction submission produced a normalised evaluation score of
88.84% and represents best value to the Council.
(ii) Approves that delegated officers acting on behalf of Salford City Council
progress with the constructor partner in selecting a design and finalising costs
for the delivery of the project in line with an agreed budget. This is the second
stage of a 2 Stage procurement process and will take design up to RIBA Stage
4. This stage is the final design stage where all design information should be
fully co-ordinated and completed to enable the construction of the project to be
progressed.
(iii) Approves that a pre-construction agreement be issued to cover the period
between August 2021 up to when the formal contract is executed (expected
to be around March 2022).

Page 23

(iv) Authorises that interim payments up to the value of £349,000 be made under the
terms and conditions of the pre-construction agreement with Crossfield Construction

Detail required

Answers

Title/Description of Contracted
Service/Supply/Project

Design and Build Contract for a Housing Project
at LongShaw Driv e

Name of Successful Contractor

Crossfield Construction Ltd

Supplier Registration Number

07963048

(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement)

Type of organisation

Priv ate Limited Company

(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement)

Status of Organisation

SME

(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement)

Contract Value

£331,347.45

Full Project £349,000 including
surveys and associated costs

Contract Duration

Approx. 9 months

Contract Start Date

01/08/2021

Contract End Date

30/04/2022

Optional Extension Period 1

months

Optional Extension Period 2

months

Who will approve each Extension
Period?

Choose an item.

Contact Officer (Name & number)

Andrew Leigh 07970 379519

Lead Service Group

Place

How the contract was procured?
(to be supplied by procurement)

Framew ork Call-off (Mini Competition)

Framework Details (where applicable)
(procurement body, framework
reference & title, start/ end date

I nnov ation Chain North Framew ork

Funding Source

Capital Programme

Ethical Contractor

Mayor’s Employment Charter
Committed to sign up to charter

☐
☒

Accredited Living Wage Employer

☐

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:
The purpose of this report is to seek approval for the award of the above mentioned
contract.

Page 24

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS:
Exempt under Paragraph 3 of Schedule 12 A of the Local Government Act 1972
“Tender Submissions and Evaluation documents”

KEY DECISION: Yes

DETAILS:
1.

Background

The report seeks approval to commit to appointing a contractor to develop costs and
designs for housing projects under a two-stage design and build procurement route.
Salford Council is working in partnership with Derive to provide affordable housing
developments in Little Hulton. Under previous appointments the group are working
with suitably qualified design consultants to provide Architectural services for the
development of high quality new homes.
As part of this Salford Council has committed to delivering 177 units, 45 apartments
and 132 houses, with funding to be provided by the Council through a loan agreement
and an application for Homes England affordable homes funding. It is intended that
the homes on completion will be transferred to Derive as part of the council’s
aspirations for direct delivery.
The Council are the lead development partner and have previously entered contracts
with a developer through Scape to proceed with the project to Planning Stage based
on a brief. The brief was to Develop the masterplan layout to a completed RIBA Stage
2 design that would allow the developer to present a Scape Gateway 3 Report
including a Cost Plan for the Council to review/approval. On receipt of the Cost Plan
and following an external Value for Money review it was agreed not to proceed via
Scape, appoint project management, design and planning support to submit planning
and seek competitive costs via a tender process under the Innovation Chain North
Framework.
Following that process this report recommends the appointment of a contractor to
develop designs to RIBA Stage 4 and produce a detailed Contract Sum Analysis,
under the second stage of a two stage tender and to bring forward the site for delivery.
As part of the above Identity Consult Limited have been previously appointed by the
Council to undertake initial project management to run the first stage of a two stage
tender. Planning application was made in March 2021 and following a request for an
extension to the usual consultation period, a decision is expected in September 2021.

Page 25

Following conclusion of a first stage tender process under the Innovation Chain North
Framework, Crossfield Construction is ranked as preferred Contractor. Crossfield has
provided a 141-week programme which is an improvement on the 156 assumption
and which was assessed as deliverable. The next stage to be taken is a costed
developed design under a two-stage design and build tender process.
There will be a requirement for a pre-construction agreement to be issued to cover the
period of time between August 2021 up to when the formal contract is ready to be
executed.
Under the terms and conditions of such a pre-construction agreement interim
payments will need to be made to the contractor for costs accrued up to the agreement
of a full contract price under the Stage 2 process.
2. The Procurement Process
The contract was procured in accordance with Contractual Standing Orders and
tenders were invited by mini competition under the Innovation Chain North Framework.
Three companies submitted a tender and these have been evaluated in accordance
with the criteria set out in line with the mini competition tender documents.
The evaluation scores are scheduled below:% Price
score

% Quality
score

% Overall
Score

Max 40%

Max 60%

100%

Crossfield
Construction Ltd

37.24

51.60

88.84

Provider B

40.00

41.40

81.40

Provider C

27.59

43.50

71.09

Name of Bidder

Following the evaluation process the company that scored highest in accordance with
the selection criteria was Crossfield Construction Ltd. Their submission produced a
score of 88.84% and represents best value to the Council.

3. Social Value
The Contractors ability to deliver Social value outcomes was assessed as part of the
Framework process; the successful bidder demonstrated a satisfactory capacity to
deliver Social value outcomes which also impact on local issues.
In their bid Crossfield Construction Ltd stated that they are committed to support
Salford City Council’s Policy and will support our aims to build community spirit,
improve environmental sustainability and increase local economic benefit. This will be
delivered by:

Page 26

Economic Development
● Creating at least 5 jobs for local people. In partnership with Salford Employ,
providing them with details of any vacancies first so unemployed residents are
prioritised.
● Employ a fully local supply chain – Use existing relationships with Greater
Manchester supply chain to ensure 75% of supply chain are from within a 15
mile radius of the site (100% from with 25 miles). Host a ‘Meet the Buyer’ event
in Little Hulton to provide opportunities for new suppliers.
Educational opportunities
● Organising a minimum of 10 activities aiming to reduce social, cultural and
digital exclusion. Engaging with local organisations to help hard to reach groups
find pathways to employment e.g. Women with Wings, Mustard Tree. Partner
with Reach Out to provide voluntary mentoring and support to young people
from disadvantaged communities. Run IT support/digital skills sessions to help
residents ‘get online’ and use helpful resources.
● Provide 80 apprenticeship weeks for age 15+. Working with Worsley College,
Bridge GM, Little Hulton Skills Centre and Salford Foundation Trust to help coordinate apprenticeships and provide CV workshops, mock interviews and
careers advice. To assist in enhancing the learning opportunities available for
young people.
Health and Social Care
● Providing 10 health and wellbeing initiatives for local people. This will be
undertaken by displaying support around the site e.g. promoting NHS healthy
Start and contact details for mental health support. Work with Community Little
Hulton to deliver outdoor activities for young people. Engage with Worsley
Leisure Centre or other local instructors to coordinate adult fitness activities.
● Providing 10 health and wellbeing initiatives for staff and the supply chain. Host
mental health awareness sessions. Support staff to stop smoking. Provide
team building days to promote exercise and reduce stress.
Social Impact
● Ensure MSMEs make up at least 50% of the supply chain and employ at least
5 VCSEs. Provide training and assistance to MSMEs who have not previously
been successful, helping them gain a place on the preferred supplier list. Use
GMSEN Social Enterprise Directory to seek out GM/Salford based companies.
Employ VCSEs to run community initiatives such as Feelgood Communities
and DOSport UK.
● 30 staff volunteering days and 10 charity donations. Use volunteering days to
support Mustard Tree in their Food Clubs and Freedom Project, to assist in the
eradication of rough sleeping. Donation of goods from collection boxes in site
cabins and regularly donate food to the community Hub at Little Hulton Distri ct
Centre.

Page 27

Climate Emergency
● Reduce 96% site waste, 5 environmental activities and reduce carbon
emissions by 10% per year. This will be achieved by diverting waste from
landfill and implementing waste management strategies. Supporting The
Conservation Volunteers’ I Dig Trees programme and local Green Gym events.
Utilising sustainable site accommodation and promoting Cycle to Work
Scheme, renewable energy and ethical procurement.
Crossfield Construction will be asked to provide further evidence in support of
the Stage 2 negotiated tender process. This will be closely monitored as part of
the ongoing contract management.

KEY COUNCIL POLICIES:
All relating to affordable housing provision policies. The Sustainable Development and
Carbon Reduction Programme are also accounted for.

EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT AND IMPLICATIONS: N/a
ASSESSMENT OF RISK: Medium.
The programme has been developed to achieve the delivery of contracts to meet the
grant funding criteria and the necessary phased completion dates.
Procurement Board should note that full ownership control of the site has not yet been
secured.
This will be a risk to development progression and business plan viability if not
resolved quickly and at reasonable cost. Officers are confident this can be achieved.
SOURCE OF FUNDING:
The cost of this scheme is built into the approved capital programme funded from a
combination of self-financing borrowing and grant funding on the basis that all units
will ultimately be funded by Derive on their transfer at completion.
LEGAL IMPLICATIONS: Supplied by: Tony Hatton (Principal Solicitor) Tel. 219 6323.
When commissioning contracts for the procurement of goods, services or the
execution of works, the Council must comply with the public procurement regulations
and its own Contractual Standing Orders, failing which a contract may be subject to
legal challenge from an aggrieved provider. The proposed award of the contract

Page 28

follows a tender exercise by mini competition in accordance with the Innovation Chain
Framework.
The purpose of a framework agreement is to select through a procurement/evalua tion
process a number of providers who can meet the service requirements of the Council,
as and when those services are required. If they are required then the Council will
undertake an exercise to call off the services from one or more of the providers who
have been selected to be on the Framework and this may be through any number of
ways e.g. mini-competition, direct allocation etc depending on the circumstances. A
contract will then be formed between the Council and the chosen provider/s.
The Council will need to have followed the procedure set out in the framework
agreement for mini competition to ensure the procurement process is compliant. Three
tenders were received from framework suppliers for this project, which have been
evaluated on the best value tender basis in line with procurement procedures resulting
in the proposed award of the contract to Crossfield Construction Ltd. The procurement
procedures therefore appear robust and compliant with the requirements of the City
Council’s contractual standing orders and public procurement legislation.
The award of the contract will commit the City Council to the formal arrangement and
upon receipt of instructions Legal Services will assist in preparing the necessary
contractual documentation to ensure the City Council’s position and interests are
protected.
Outstanding ownership issues are as outlined in the risk section.
FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: Submitted by: Chris Mee Strategic Finance Manager
ext 0434
The business case for this scheme received in principle approval from cabinet in
December 2020 based on an estimated cost for the scheme that was affordable to be
funded on transfer of the units by Derive. Provision has been included within the
approved capital programme on that basis funded from a combination of self-financing
borrowing and grant funding.
The appointment of a contractor and move to the stage 2 process will allow the
affordability of the scheme to be confirmed at which point further approval to proceed
will be required, both from the council and the Derive board.
The cost for the Second Stage tender process is £331,347.45 Full Project £349,000
surveys and associated costs, to be met from within the budget for the scheme.
In the unlikely event that this scheme does not go ahead this stage 2 cost identified
above will be abortive and will fall on the council.
Other associated Professional fees i.e. Project Manager, Employers Agent, Cost
Management will be subject to a separate report.

Page 29

PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS: Supplied by: Deborah Derbyshire (Category
Manager – Corporate Procurement Team) Tel: 0161 686 6244
The contract was procured through a compliant process by use of the Innovation Chain
North Framework by use of the stage 1 tender process. The process is in accordance
with Contractual Standing Orders and the Procurement Contracts Regulations.
The winning tenderer also supports the Council’s objectives of delivering social value
on this contract.

HR IMPLICATIONS: Supplied by: N/a
CLIMATE CHANGE IMPLICATIONS:
The project is being developed as Low Energy Low Carbon to exceed current Building
Regulations relating to energy efficiency and carbon reduction. The operational and
running costs of the new houses will be a significant factor in the overall requirements.
The designs are required to support the objectives of Salford City Council becoming
carbon neutral by 2028.
Crossfield have stated that they will apply environmental management activities to
develop the schemes which will support the GMSF work and they are accredited under
ISO 14001:2015.
The final project design and construction will be in full compliance with current building
regulations with aspects which exceed these where possible.
Any sustainability plan would be targeted to also align with opportunities to deliver
social value outcomes.
OTHER DIRECTORATES CONSULTED: N/a
CONTACT OFFICERS:
Andrew Leigh
Head of Housing & Strategy
Salford City Council
Mob 07970 379519
Les Woolhouse
Head of Buildings & Facilities
Mob: 07713 786 093
Peter Openshaw
Interim Strategic Director Place
Mob 07766550136
WARD(S) TO WHICH REPORT RELATE(S): Little Hulton

Page 30

Agenda Item 5d
Part 1: Open to the public

REPORT OF
The Strategic Director for People
TO
Procurement Board
ON
28 July 2021

TITLE: Approval to Award the Contract for Purchase of a Choice Based Lettings
Management System and on-going Homelessness Prevention and Advice System

RECOMMENDATION:
That Procurement Board approve the award of the Contract for a Choice Based
Lettings Management System and on-going Homelessness Prevention and Advice
System as detailed in the table below:

Detail required

Answers

Title/Description of Contracted
Service/Supply/Project

Choice Based Lettings Management System
and on-going Homelessness Prevention and
Advice System

Name of Successful Contractor

Locata Housing Services (Limited)

Supplier Registration Number

04419315

(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement)

Type of organisation
(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement)

Private Company limited by guarantee without
share capital

Status of Organisation

SME

(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement)

Contract Value

£99,400

Full Project

Contract Duration

24 months

Contract Start Date

15/11/2021

Contract End Date

14/11/2023

Optional Extension Period 1

12 months

Page 31

Optional Extension Period 2

12 months

Who will approve each Extension
Period?

Strategic Director (extension < £150k)

Contact Officer (Name & number)

Jane Anderson, 0161 793 2078

Lead Service Group

People Services

How the contract was procured?
(to be supplied by procurement)
Framework Details (where applicable)
(procurement body, framework
reference & title, start/ end date
Funding Source
Ethical Contractor

Direct Award
Crown Commercial Services
G-Cloud 12 Framework
Choose an item.
Mayor’s Employment Charter
Committed to sign up to charter
Accredited Living Wage Employer

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:
The purpose of this report is to seek approval for the award of the above mentioned
contract.

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS:
None

KEY DECISION:
No

DETAILS:
1.

Background

Homelessness
In April 2018 the Homelessness Reduction Act was implemented placing new duties
on local authorities to prevent and relieve homelessness. Local authorities are
required to report quarterly on their homelessness activity to the Ministry of Housing,
Communities and Local Government (MHCLG), previously known as the P1E. With
the new legislation came new reporting requirements to include the additional duties

Page 32

placed on local authorities, now known as H-CLIC, requiring an updated case
management system.
Greater Manchester Combined Authority (GMCA), was successful in securing new
burdens funding on behalf of all ten Greater Manchester authorities and procured, on
their behalf, a new case management system from Locata, HPA2, with each authority
having its own system.
The contract was for two years with an optional two year (one year plus one year),
extension. The contract is currently in the second of the optional one year extensions.
Choice Based Lettings
The advertising and allocation of social housing in Salford is managed through a
choice based lettings (CBL), system, currently an in-house web-based system, Salford
Home Search, managed by the Housing Options Service on behalf of the registered
providers operating in the city.
The current system is entirely separate from the HPA2 homelessness case
management system and therefore when a homelessness case is opened on the
HPA2 system and the applicant requires assistance with securing social housing, a
separate application has to be registered on Salford Home Search resulting in time
consuming duplication.
Salford Home Search does not provide the flexibility the landlords would prefer, for
example, in relation to the bid cycle – the length of time a property is advertised for
and when the advert can be placed – which can adversely affect their rental income.
The reporting function for Salford Home Search is through Business Objects. This is
proving increasingly problematic as there is a reliance on IT to run any non-standard
reports, the accuracy of which are often called into question.
The purchase of the Locata CBL module will be a ‘bolt on’ to the existing HPA2 system.
It will be possible to pull information from one system to another thereby ending the
need for duplicate inputting. It allows for some functions to be automated that on the
existing system have to be done manually, for example, assisted bidding where bids
are placed on behalf of the applicant
The CBL module allows increased flexibility, in particular in relation to the bid cycle,
making the system more attractive to registered providers.
The reporting function is more advanced and does not require any input from IT
Services.
By joining the two contracts into one, this will allow for better financial management by
aligning the costs.

The Procurement Process

Page 33

In early 2018, GMCA acting on behalf of the 10 local authorities, undertook the
procurement exercise to put in place a contract for the provision of an ICT system to
support in introduction of the new Homelessness reduction Act (HRA).
G-Cloud9 Framework was selected as the preferred route to market. Using the
statement of requirements, the prescribed framework process was followed on the
Government Digital Marketplace.
After the application of filters three suppliers were shortlisted. Of these - only Locata
met all the essential key requirements. In addition, Locata offered the lowest cost
solution (price cards are published on the digital marketplace), demonstrating the best
value (MEAT) requirements of making a direct award via the Framework.
Locata provided a detailed written response to the Statement of Requirements
confirming how they satisfactorily meet each element of the specification.
Since that time it has become apparent that the current in-house choice based lettings
ICT system is not fit for purpose, and the Council received a proposal from Locata to
implement a separate module of the HRA system which would provide the functionality
required for CBL.
Using a new statement of requirements, a search was done on the Digital marketplace,
and Locata is the only system that met the range of requirements.
As the current GCloud 9 contract is in its final year, both Locata and The Council have
agreed that it would be best to end the current contract and re-contract via G-Cloud
12 for both modules on a new 4 year (2+2) agreement.
Social Value
Please see separate statement provided by Locata.

KEY COUNCIL POLICIES:
Local authorities are required by law under the Housing Act 1996, part 6, to have an
Allocations Policy that sets out how priorities are determined and how social housing
in the area is allocated. The CBL system is the mechanism used to implement the
policy.

EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT AND IMPLICATIONS:
The Locata CBL system does not require an EIA as the Allocations Policy has a
completed EIA.

Page 34

ASSESSMENT OF RISK:
The current system is inefficient, outdated and unsupported. If the contract is not
awarded, staff resources will continue to be wasted through the duplication of work
and the completion of manual tasks that could be automated.
Landlords will continue to lose rental income due to the lack of flexibility imposed by a
prescribed bidding cycle as opposed to being able to advertise properties as soon as
notice is given by the tenant.
Award of the contract will enable greater financial control.
SOURCE OF FUNDING:
Revenue – Homelessness Prevention Grant uplift awarded by MHCLG.
LEGAL IMPLICATIONS: Supplied by: Tony Hatton, The Shared Legal Service
When commissioning contracts for the procurement of goods, services, or the
execution of works, the Council must comply with the Public Contracts Regulations
2015 (PCR) and its own Contractual Standing Orders (CSO’s), failing which a contract
may be subject to legal challenge from an aggrieved provider. CSO’s state that a
framework arrangement should be used unless there is an auditable reason not to do
so. The proposed award of the contract follows a direct award to Locata in accordance
with the G-Cloud9 Framework.
The purpose of a framework agreement is to select through a procurement/evalua tion
process a number of providers who can meet the service requirements of the Council,
as and when those services are required. If they are required then the Council will
undertake an exercise to call off the services from one or more of the providers who
have been selected to be on the framework and this may be through any number of
ways e.g. mini-competition, direct allocation etc. depending on the circumstances. A
contract will then be formed between the Council and the chosen provider/s
The Council will need to have followed the procedure set out in the framework
agreement for direct award to ensure the procurement process is compliant for the
proposed award of the contract to Locata. The procurement procedures therefore
appear robust and compliant with the requirements of the Council’s CSO’s and PCR.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: Submitted by: Gemma Singleton, Finance Officer
CBL Locata module will replace Salford Home Search (but retaining the name), the
landlords will still be required to pay to be a partner so we will continue to receive
income.

Page 35

£49,700 (for 12 months) will come from the funds in the Prevention Fund H8016,
allocated to Locata. The proposal is to combine the existing Locata HPA2 contract
with the new CBL contract so the charge for the existing contract and the on-going
charges for CBL have been included as well.
PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS: Supplied by: Emma Heyes, Category Manager
G-Cloud 12 is a framework put in place by Crown Commercial Services via a tendering
process compliant with Procurement Regs.
The method of award is direct award only, by using the filtering criteria laid down in
the guidance.
The selection of Locata was made based on the system matching the service
requirements.
The G-Cloud 12 Call-Off form will require completion to form the contract between the
Council and Locata.

HR IMPLICATIONS: Supplied by:
N/A
CLIMATE CHANGE IMPLICATIONS: Supplied by: Michael Hemingway
Following consultation with Michael Hemingway, no climate change implications
have been identified at this stage.

OTHER DIRECTORATES CONSULTED:
None
CONTACT OFFICER: Jane Anderson
TELEPHONE NUMBER: 0161 793 2078
WARD(S) TO WHICH REPORT RELATE(S):

Page 36

N/A

Page 37

This page is intentionally left blank

Social Value Statement & Salford City Council
Locata currently work with 135+ Local Authorities in England. Due to this It is difficult to
achieve in a fair and balanced manner the objectives of organisational outputs of so many
local authority clients and their many and varied Social Value policies.
In view of the above Locata produced a broad Social Value Statement outlining how Locata
aspires to meet and address a range of social value objectives;
1. Promote employment and economic sustainability – tackle unemployment and
facilitate the development of skills
2. Raise the living standards of local residents – working towards living wage, maximise
employee access to entitlements such as childcare.
3. Promote participation and citizen engagement - encourage resident participation
and promote active citizenship
4. Build the capacity and sustainability of the voluntary and community sector–
practical support for local voluntary and community groups
5. Promote equity and fairness – target effort towards those in the greatest need or
facing the greatest disadvantage and tackle deprivation across the borough
6. Promote environmental sustainability – reduce wastage, limit energy consumption
and procure materials from sustainable sources
With a particular focus on Salford City Council the above six objectives are primarily driven
by Locata’s practitioner led IT systems and services offering. These can be highlighted by the
following;
System Reporting Functionality
The level of in-depth quality reporting which is available from within our systems will allow a
targeted approach by Salford City Council officers (via bespoke action planning for
applicants) and strategically by being able to identify housing supply and demand across the
Salford City Council local authority area. This enables Salford City Council residents with a
housing need to link in with other services which may be impacting on that housing need
such as health, training, employment and education etc. Being aware of the supply and
demand of housing across the Salford City Council area can assist Officers in identifying
target areas for future development and build to contribute to meeting that demand as
part of Salford City Council’s wider housing strategy.
Sourcing Labour
As an SME company with only a small number of employees it is unlikely Locata will ever be
in a position to meet our future labour resource needs from the large number of local
authority areas we work across. However, having said that, Locata is flexible when it comes
to recruiting for its Project Manager roles and other staff vacancies. It is more important to
our business planning and development that the staff we recruit have the relevant and
Locata’s Salford City Council Social Value Statement
Last updated June 2021

Page 39

appropriate skills, knowledge , experience and qualifications over and above where they
may reside. Our current staff group reside in different parts of the country (London,
Watford, Lincolnshire, Greater Manchester) contributing successfully through their work to
meeting the social values of Salford City Council.
Public Facing Website
The public facing website Locata intends to provide Salford City Council with as part of the
Choice Based Lettings (CBL) system they have procured will be a completely ‘responsive’
website. Responsive means that the website can be quickly and easily accessed from any
type of device e.g. laptop, mobile phone, tablet etc. This means that Salford City Council
residents visiting the website can access the content quickly and easily no matter what
device they may be using. It also means that any forms can also be quickly and easily
completed along with the facility to upload any supporting documents.
The content of the website can be self-managed by Salford City Council Officers and can
help to deliver the wider required outcomes of their Social Value and Sustainability policy,
particularly around employment, training, education, health & well-being etc.
The ‘My Advice Gateway’
There is so much information available on the internet that it can often be a tedious
and time consuming activity to search through the mass of advice that is available to
find the information that a customer may be seeking. Even government websites
that have been set up to provide help can be difficult for customers to navigate.
As part of the public facing website we will be providing, we include a micro-website
My Advice Gateway which is fully supported by Locata. My Advice Gateway is a free
resource to help and support ALL Salford City Council residents to quickly find the
advice and information required to claim benefits, access help and support or look
for a job or training opportunities. Other services include sections on banking,
insurance and how to manage debt.
My Advice Gateway was built to help find the information Salford’s residents need
quickly and effectively. Links within the website will take them to authoritative
advice or the precise benefit application form that might be required.
In summary, our systems outputs will enable Salford City Council to produce their
own outputs that can be defined, configured and targeted in a way that meet the
various housing/corporate strategies which they may have in place.
Advertising of Properties
•

Local information about properties advertised within the Salford City Council area
will be generated via Google using the property’s postcode. This will include
information on local shops, schools, nurseries, medical centre’s, public transport and
more.

•

Customers can set up a property alert so they can be informed of properties being
advertised which may meet their needs.

Locata’s Salford City Council Social Value Statement
Last updated June 2021

Page 40

•

Property adverts for available properties can be targeted to specific groups of
Salford City Council residents based on age, employment, volunteering, mobility,
finance, affordability, medical need etc.

Environmental Sustainability & Development
The principles of this have been and remain at the heart of Locata Housing Services strategy.
Our aim is to:
•

Contribute towards the preservation of the environment and natural
resources, within both our own company operations as well as Salford City
Councils sites.

•

Continue to develop innovation and technological progress to guarantee the
advancement of the company and its customers whilst being respectful of
any environmental impact.

•

Maintain and continuously aspire to develop a sustainable business
operation.

•

Continue to develop innovation for tomorrow which can have a positive
impact on Salford City Council and our wider client base.

Locata’s Salford City Council Social Value Statement
Last updated June 2021

Page 41

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 5e
Part 1: Open to the public

REPORT OF
The Strategic Director for Place
TO
Procurement Board
ON
28th July 2021

TITLE: Approval to Award the Contract for partial internal refurbishment of the Civic
centre, Swinton.

RECOMMENDATION:
That Procurement Board approve the award of the Contract for the partial internal
refurbishment at the Civic Centre, Swinton, as detailed in the table below:

Detail required

Answers

Title/Description of Contracted
Service/Supply/Project

Partial internal refurbishment of the Civic centre,
Swinton

Name of Successful Contractor

Seddon Construction Ltd

Supplier Registration Number

03578140

(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement)

Type of organisation

Private Limited Company

(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement)

Status of Organisation

SME

(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement)

Contract Value

£201,653.11

Full Project £252,00.00

Contract Duration

15 weeks

Contract Start Date

09/08/2021

Contract End Date

19/11/2021

Optional Extension Period 1

N/A

Optional Extension Period 2

N/A

Page 43

Who will approve each Extension
Period?
Contact Officer (Name & number)

N/A
Les Woolhouse 0161 779 4961

Lead Service Group

Place

How the contract was procured?
(to be supplied by procurement)
Framework Details (where applicable)
(procurement body, framework
reference & title, start/ end date
Funding Source
Ethical Contractor

Framework Call-off (Mini Competition)
Minor Building Works Framework Lot 2
Agreement
Capital Programme
Mayor’s Employment Charter
Committed to sign up to charter
Accredited Living Wage Employer

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:
The purpose of this report is to seek approval for the award of the above mentioned
contract.

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS:
Exempt under Paragraph 3 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972
‘Tender Submissions and Evaluation Documents’

KEY DECISION:
No

DETAILS:
1. Background
Salford City Council is going through a period of unprecedented and ongoing change
and the need for different ways of working has been identified.
As part of the process the Council are looking at increasing organisational and
individual performance through enabling people to work smarter utilising digital tools

Page 44

and implementing behavioural changes in the way they work and the best places this
can be completed.
The current accommodation on the civic centre campus is outdated and does not
provide suitable workspaces that are in alignment with the Council’s corporate
strategy to enable the workforce to work smarter. Refurbishment of the
accommodation will support the implementation of the MyWork principles and
programme. The refurbishment to the accommodation in Unity House, Innovation
House and Phase 1 of Civic Centre will be completed to a corporate standard that
can be applied to any workplace in the Council’s portfolio.
The works are to be funded from the capital programme.
2. The Procurement Process
The works for the project were tendered under the Council’s e-tendering portal in
accordance with Contractual Standing Orders. Tenders were let by mini competition
under the Minor Building Works Framework Lot 2 Agreement.
Three companies submitted a tender and these have been evaluated in accordance
with selection criteria.
The evaluation scores are as follows:-

% Price
score

% Quality
score

% Overall
Score

Max 70%

Max 30%

100%

70.00

24.00

94.00

Provider B

51.53

22.00

73.53

Provider C

61.39

20.00

81.39

Name of Bidder
Seddon Construction
Ltd

Following the evaluation process the company that scored the highest in accordance
with the selection criteria was Seddon Construction Limited with a tender of
£201,653.11. Their submission produced a score of 94.00% and represents the most
economically advantageous offer to the Council which also supports social value.
3. Social Value
Seddon Construction Limited stated the following in their submission;Seddon will work collaboratively with SCC to help make a difference for its people.
We want to help make Salford a better place to live/work through our projects and
make Salford 10% better via:


Better for people: building community spirit

Page 45



Better for the planet: improve environmental sustainability



Creating local prosperity: increase local economic benefit

Traineeships, apprenticeships, work experience placements and employment of
local labour
We will utilise our current training programmes to help opportunities to gain skills.
We identify suitable candidates from local communities, committing to providing
training/employment opportunities. We also explore the option of offering an
apprenticeship, advertising opportunities via SCC/Seddon/National Apprentice
websites.
Seddon have a strategic partnership with Salford City College and Salford University
to facilitate graduates and young people into the built environment.
Our contracts manager and many other Seddon managers are undertaking their
APM qualification at Salford City College.
Salford Living Wage
Seddon is a Living Wage employer. All our employees are paid living wage or above.
We’ll promote the Living Wage to all associated parties.
30% of our direct workforce are from within Salford. We have been awarded the
Charter Mark Award for our commitment to Salford City Mayor’s Charter for
Employment Standards Charter.
We aim to deploy our Salford based team members on this project and will provide
detail on this prior to starting on site.
Salford Subcontractors
We will engage with local suppliers, promoting opportunities to local businesses/SMEs
with a view to appointing them. We maintain close relationships with smaller/local
suppliers, they are often better able to locate/supply more difficult to source items due
to local knowledge
Our painting supplies will be purchased from Salford based Johnstone’s Decorating
Centre (M5 3SQ) and Dulux Decorator Centre (M5 3GR).
The flooring and ceiling contractors that offer best value are based in Greater
Manchester, we will encourage them to deploy Salford based staff and purchase in
Salford.
Engaging with secondary schools, donations to local community groups and corporate
volunteering days
We go over/above our contractual commitments, engaging with communities – looking
to deliver various initiatives, however, project size/scale really determines our impact.

Page 46

The proximity of local schools including Moorside High School and St Ambrose Barlow
offers us a fantastic opportunity to run programmes that promote career options within
the industry, such as interview techniques/CV writing.
We actively encourage our people to stand up and get involved, with activities such
as charity, fundraising events and volunteering events.
We continue to actively support Salford Food Bank providing volunteering hours and
transport through our fleet/vans.
Environmental sustainability practices
Seddon operates its own store of trade materials and equipment from our head office
resulting in minimal travel distances, emissions, and costs.
We will also minimise travel distances by employing Salford based subcontractors and
suppliers, and drawing on our in-house trades, based only six miles away from site.
Seddon operates CIRCLE (Construction Industry Recycling Centre for the Local
Environment), two fully operational waste transfer stations, one in Kearsley and one
in Liverpool. They recycle up to 100% of construction waste with waste to energy
forming a central function. CIRCLE Kearsley will be utilised for this project.
Monitoring and reporting
Our community project manager will manage our social value commitments with
SCC. We will work in collaboration with our site team to deliver, measure, monitor
and evaluate agreed targets. We have built strong relationships within the Salford
community having worked with the University of Salford and Salford City College
employing and accrediting talented apprentices. Performance against our targets
will be reported to SCC.
The successful contractor is not a Salford based SME and the above outputs will be
managed and monitored through a project specific social value plan. The log will
provide a results summary showing how the social value initiatives are progressing
and the achievements made.
KEY COUNCIL POLICIES:
All relating to carbon reduction and social value outcomes relating to local
employment

EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT AND IMPLICATIONS:
Work with construction projects is valuable in supporting local employment and in
supporting local supply chains in construction work. This in turn aids the growth and
regeneration of the City.

Page 47

ASSESSMENT OF RISK: High.
The current office accommodation is no longer suitable for the councils needs in
delivering its frontline and essential services. Following the coronavirus pandemic it
has been established that the workspaces require reconfiguration/refurbishment to
meet the requirements of the service areas and the welfare areas improving to
improve cleaning and sanitisation. This will provide safe flexible working areas to
assist in the delivery of Council services to the residents of Salford.
SOURCE OF FUNDING:
The funding will come from the 2021/22 Capital Programme
Expenditure code: C00210

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS: Supplied by: The Shared Legal Service - Contact officer and
telephone number: Tony Hatton - Principal Solicitor tel. 0161 219 6323.
When commissioning contracts for the procurement of goods, services, or the
execution of works, the Council must comply with the Public Contracts Regulations
2015 (PCR) and its own Contractual Standing Orders (CSO’s), failing which a contract
may be subject to legal challenge from an aggrieved provider. The proposed award of
the contract follows a tender exercise by mini competition in accordance with the Minor
Building Works Framework Agreement Lot 2.
The purpose of a framework agreement is to select through a procurement/ evaluation
process a number of providers who can meet the service requirements of the Council,
as and when those services are required. If they are required then the Council will
undertake an exercise to call off the services from one or more of the providers who
have been selected to be on the framework and this may be through any number of
ways e.g. mini-competition, direct allocation etc. depending on the circumstances. A
contract will then be formed between the Council and the chosen provider/s.
The Council will need to have followed the procedure set out in the framework
agreement for mini competition to ensure the procurement process is compliant. Three
tenders were received from framework suppliers for this project, which have been
evaluated on the most economically advantageous tender basis in line with
procurement procedures resulting in the proposed award of the contract to Seddon
Construction Limited. The procurement procedures therefore appear robust and
compliant with the requirements of the Council’s CSO’s and PCR.
Legal Services will assist with preparing any contractual documentation upon receipt
of instructions to ensure the Council’s position and interest are protected
FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: Submitted by:
management, x2668.

Chris Hesketh, head of financial

The works will be funded by the MyWorks capital scheme, included in the 2021/22
capital programme in the sum of £900,000. Within the scheme, there is budget

Page 48

available of £252,000 to cover refurbishment costs. (Tender costs £201,650 plus
surveys professional fees and associated additional area costs of £50,350).
PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS: Supplied by: The Corporate Procurement Team
Contact officer and telephone number: Deborah Derbyshire (Category Manager –
Corporate Procurement Team) tel 0161 686 6244
The project has been competitively tendered by means of a mini competition under
the Council’s own Minor Building Works Framework Lot 2 which complies with the
Councils Contractual Standing Orders and the Procurement Contract Regulations.
The winning tenderer has submitted the most economically advantageous offer in line
with the rules of the framework and the award also supports the Council’s objectives
of working towards delivering social value on this contract.
HR IMPLICATIONS: Sam Betts, Assistant Director HR & OD
Whilst there are no direct workforce implications arising from the award of this
contract the works being undertaken will support and enable the safe and phased
return to the workplace with staff working in a hybrid way in line with the C ouncil’s
MyWork programme.
CLIMATE CHANGE IMPLICATIONS:
No significant Climate Change implications in this project. All projects are developed
to meet or exceed current legislation and requirements relating to energy efficiency
and carbon reduction targets. Projects are required to support the Council’s objectives
of becoming carbon neutral by 2028.
The works will be programmed to minimise the traffic impact in the area. Any waste
materials will be removed and taken to a transfer station for systematic sorting and
recycling to ensure minimal landfill waste.
Sustainability plans would be targeted to also align with opportunities to continue to
deliver social value outcomes
___________________________________________________________________
OTHER DIRECTORATES CONSULTED: All Service areas impacted by the changes.
CONTACT OFFICER:
Les Woolhouse Head of Buildings and Facilities 07713 786 093
WARD(S) TO WHICH REPORT RELATE(S): Swinton & Wardley

Page 49

This page is intentionally left blank

